
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

7 October 2020 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 15th October, 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) England & 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live 
via:  www.mybostonuk.com/youtube 

 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor George Cornah 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 

Deborah Evans, Neill Hastie and Frank Pickett 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27th August 2020. 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.mybostonuk.com/youtube


 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 12th October 2020. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - 2021/22 (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

 (A report by Gemma Creasey, Council Tax and Benefits Manager) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jonathan Noble  
 

2   WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (Pages 17 - 34) 
 

 (A report by James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 
Services) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor P Skinner 
 

3   ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT (Pages 35 - 54) 
 

 (A report on the Scrutiny Function for 2019/20 presented by the Chairman) 
 

4   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 55 - 60) 
 

 (For Members to discuss the Committee’s current work programme.  Monitoring 
information for Quarter 1 is included for reference.) 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

27 August 2020 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani and 
Frank Pickett 
 
In attendance: Councillor Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader & Portfolio Holder 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services, Assistant Director - Assets 
and Democratic Services Officer 
 
40   MINUTES 

 
The Chairman requested a recorded vote on both sets of minutes to be agreed.  The 
respective Members of the Committee, in attendance at the respective meetings, agreed 
accuracy of the Minutes as follows: 
 

Councillors Ashton, Bell, Cornah, Dani, Pickett and Woodliffe agreed the accuracy of the 
Minutes for the meeting held on the 6 February 2020. 
 

Councillors Cornah, Dani and Woodliffe agreed the accuracy of the Minutes for the 
meeting held on the 14 June 2020. 
 
41   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled for Councillor Anne Dorrian and Councillor Deborah 
Evans.  Councillor Alison Austin in attendance as a substitute member for the vacant 
Independent seat. 
 
42   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were tabled. 
 
43   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No public questions. 
 
44   DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES FOR CONSULTATION 

 
Councillor Nigel Welton Deputy Leader of the Council introduced the report and 
provided committee with a review of the process to date, confirming that Cabinet had 
originally tasked him to undertake the review in 2019. 
  
The timeline at the onset of the review was to have included various rounds of Member 
Briefings ahead of the draft document, which once formulated, would have been taken 
through Scrutiny and on to Cabinet, prior to public consultation.  The timeline however 
had stalled due to the pandemic.   
 
Since resuming the task, various group consultation sessions had taken place. The 
current timeline now looked to seek Cabinet’s agreement to consultation on the 9th 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
27 August 2020 
 

September 2020, with consultation beginning the following day on the 10th September 
2020, should Cabinet agree.  On completion of the consultation exercise, a further report 
tabling the outcomes to Cabinet, ahead of the final document being tabled for adoption 
though Full Council late in 2020  
 
Referencing the process adopted for production of the draft document, Councillor 
Welton advised that he had initially researched a number of similar documents both 
locally and nationally and identified that the majority were weighty, wordy and in-depth. 
Further detailed consideration of the comparative documents clearly found that the 
bigger the document, the less relevance it had for local people.  The draft document 
tabled for Members’ initial consideration, was subject to ongoing change dependant on 
the outcomes of the various consultation streams.  Final adoption of the document 
would be a matter for determination by all Members at Full Council. 
 
With clear identification of the overarching priority as being what would be best for the 
residents who lived and worked within the Borough, four priorities were agreed.  The 
document allowed ease of read for all members of the public:  it was not about the past, 
but it did build on what had taken place historically to move the Borough forward.   The 
document gave the Council a clear mandate moving forward and would evolve as 
required to accommodate changes in the future, allowing the Council to shape the 
document as necessary in light of potential changes arising from devolution of a move to 
a unitary authority.  
 
The final document would provide a very clear statement of intention for the Council 
moving forward.  Furthermore, to ensure full monitoring of the priorities, the final report 
to Full Council would seek agreement for annual scrutiny of the document by both 
Scrutiny committees.    
 
Thanking Councillor Welton for introducing the report, the Assistant Director of 
Organisation and Corporate Priorities presented the report, confirming that the need for 
the review had arisen from a Peer Review carried out in 2019.  The remit of the 
recommendation had been to provide a focus going forward recognising the Authority 
had limited resources.  
Reiteration of the timeline confirmed that should Cabinet agree the consultation process, 
it would commence on September 10th 2020.  The consultation streams would include 
employees of the Council, all residents, press (including local media), and the Boston 
Bulletin, business communities across the Borough, all Parish Councils’ and community 
groups.  Furthermore, should any member have any additional channels for 
consultation, their notification of such would be appreciated.  
 
The Assistant Director of Organisation and Corporate Priorities reminded Committee 
Members of the key points for consideration.  The primary point was the need to 
appreciate the uncertain future of local Government.  The second point was the 
importance of the need for the Council to adapt and flex as the environment changed, 
and the third point was Members’ awareness that whilst some actions were identified as 
long term, they would be activated within the timescale of the document.  Committee 
Members were further advised of the importance of improved partnership working 
across all sectors, which would be fundamental to the success of the strategy.   
Addressing the format of the document in size, the Assistant Director of Organisation 
and Corporate Priorities stressed that whilst it could not be expected that all residents 
would read it, in the event that some did then hopefully they would find it easy to 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
27 August 2020 

 

understand in its simplicity.  Ultimately, the document would guide the Council and the 
most important factor would be as to how the Council were able to articulate the vision 
to the residents. 
 
Committee deliberation followed which included the following comments and 
suggestions, relevant to the document for consideration within the report, duly collated 
due to repetition of comment.   
 
General comment: 
Overall members agreed the size of the document and its ease of read although 
concern was noted that it should be presented as a serious document and a Member 
questioned the target readership.  Members agreed that the document needed to be 
aspirational, relevant, and most importantly, that it relate to the whole of the Borough.   
Addressing the four priorities members noted that they were in line with those over 
previous years, in particular people and prosperity.  Members did however welcome the 
introduction of environmental awareness with the carbon reduction plan secured in the 
document, along with the increased attention to technology.  One key omission noted by 
a member, was the lack of any electronic connectivity that continued to be a serious 
problem in the local rural areas of the borough. 
The majority of Members recognised the need for sustainable economic growth, 
agreeing that the Borough was not only a place to visit, but also a good place to live with 
its magnificent historic market place and grammar school education and that all 
improvements should be for both residents and visitors alike. However, concern was 
noted at the loss of many high street shops, thus diminishing the visitor-shopping offer, 
but most Members recognised it this was not a local issue, it being aligned with national 
changes in retail provision.   
 
Agreeing that the depth of the consultation process would enable input by any person 
wishing to contribute, Members also stated they felt reassured at the measures being 
put in place to monitor the document by annual scrutiny. A member asked what the 
average percentage feedback of consultations was and officers advised that a written 
answer would be provided following the meeting. 
 
Identifying key concerns in the draft document members agreed the following points of 
change.   
Firstly, that the final draft document needed to be reviewed in respect of wording and 
punctuation, prior to going out to consultation.  The word ‘Google’ should be replaced by 
a more generic label to compliment the seriousness of the document.  An amendment to 
the fifth paragraph under Place to re-word the statement to read the wider borough has 
18 parishes: not as stated, the broader borough geography.  A further amendment to the 
sixth paragraph under the same heading to read “There is consistently low 
unemployment – not low employment, and the title of the Pilgrim General Hospital to be 
changed to its correct title of the Pilgrim Hospital. 
Suggestions for additional reference in the document identified three areas:  inclusion of 
electronic activity; emphasising Boston as being a sub-centre and mention of Boston’s 
International Links.   
 
One member addressed the meeting and stated he would be critical in respect of a lack 
of consultation in respect of tourism in the town.  The member stated that he felt in his 
opinion, all the minority ethnic groups in the Town had been marginalised.  He further 
stated that many Councillors had extensive personal experience of the industry.   The 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
27 August 2020 
 

member said many ethnic minority groups and businesses in the Town, felt they were 
not listened to, with many having their own suggestions for taking the Town forward.  
Referencing recent funding streams made available, the Member stated that small 
projects were easy to implement in the town centre and as effective as large-scale 
projects.  The Member noted ongoing issues within Boston town centre in respect of 
anti-social behaviour and traffic problems, and stated in his opinion that the residents in 
Boston had lost faith in the Council.  Furthermore, the Member then questioned if 
Cabinet would take on board all the comments made when they determined the report. 
 
At this point in the proceedings the Chairman intervened and referencing the item under 
discussion, stressed that the draft document covered all of the Borough of Boston and 
not just the town centre.  He reminded the Member that there were 18 Parish Councils 
also included in the draft strategy, all of whom were entitled to the committee’s full 
consideration. 
 
In summary, Councillor Welton thanked the Committee Members for their input and 
confirmed that he would take on board all the suggestions and amendments identified, 
ahead of the draft document being taken to Cabinet.  He confirmed that the document 
was in its initial stages and would be subject to further change as the consultation 
process evolved.   
 
The consultation process would include coverage throughout not only the town but also 
within the 18 parishes, allowing input for all residents and businesses across the whole 
of the Borough. 
 
To address the concerns raised by a member in respect of Cabinet considering the 
Committee’s comments in respect of the document, Councillor Welton reminded 
Members that the document did not belong to Cabinet for final determination.  The 
strategy was a Council document with Full Council making the final decision.  Cabinet 
would only agree the consultation process in the first instance, and then when the final 
document was tabled post-consultation, Cabinet would recommend it to Council for final 
determination.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the committee agree that the committee had provided comments to support 
the Strategy’ development with notation of the following suggested amendments 
to the draft document: 
 

 The document to be reviewed in respect of wording and punctuation. 

 Change the reference to ‘google’ to something more generic as it needs to be a 

serious document. 

 Wider Borough geography has 18 parishes – the ‘geography’ does not have 18 

parishes. 

 The hospital is called Pilgrim Hospital….not the Pilgrim General Hospital. 

 Page 25.  Third paragraph from the bottom:  change low employment to low 

unemployment. 

 Electronic connectivity is not within the document and is a key area needing 

address across the Borough.  

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
27 August 2020 

 

 Boston is a regional sub-centre of the County – could that be emphasised within 

the document somewhere? 

 There is no mention of Boston’s International Links.  Could they be incorporated 

within the document? 

 The Council must consult widely, through various channels, exposing the agreed 

draft to staff, businesses and residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.20 pm 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: COPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

DATE:  15 OCTOBER 2020 

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME – 2021/22 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: JONATHAN NOBLE –FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: COUNCIL TAX AND BENEFITS MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The Council Tax Support Scheme was introduced in April 2013, and the 
2020/21 scheme was agreed in December 2019. This report informs 
members on the introduction and the operation of the scheme to date, and 
provides an update on the process now being undertaken and the options 
being put forward for consultation, prior to the formal approval of the 2021/22 
scheme by Council in January 2021.  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee reviews the scheme to date, reviews the proposed 
options, then makes recommendations on the Council Tax Support Scheme 
for the 2021/22 year for Cabinet consideration prior to Council approval in 
January 2021. 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To enable members to review the operation of the scheme to date, in line 
with the council tax reduction scheme regulations 2013 and propose 
scheme options for 2020/21, prior to the recommendation of a scheme to 
Cabinet and then Council once the consultation process is completed 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To not undertake a review. 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



 
REPORT 
 
1 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  
 
1.1  As part of the Government’s programme of welfare reform, the old Council 

Tax Benefit scheme was replaced by localised support arrangements for 
Council Tax from 2013/14, with Government grant support reduced by 
10%. From April 2013, Councils have been required to establish local 
Council Tax Support (CTS) schemes. The support is in the form of a 
discount applied to the Council Tax demand notice. 

 
1.2  The Welfare Reform Act also contains provisions regarding the 

introduction of Universal Credit which impacts on the future administration 
of Housing Benefit. There continues to be a phased approach to the 
introduction of a new single welfare credit. Universal Credit roll-out for the 
Boston area began in April 2015. Universal Credit full service was rolled 
out in the Boston area on the 12th September 2018, for new claims only, 
migration of existing claims is not due to be complete until at least 2023. 

 
1.3  The 2013/14 introduction of council tax support was accompanied by a 

cash-limited government grant to councils, which was taken into account 
in setting the Council Tax Base and when forming the first year’s CTS 
local scheme.  
 

1.4 Whilst the new regulations provided councils with flexibility to set up their 
own local arrangements, the Government expressed clear intentions in 
relation to certain aspects of a local scheme. These included: 

  
• For pensioners there should be no change in the level of 

awards as a result of this reform. This includes both existing 
and new benefit claimants.  

• Councils were required to also consider ensuring support for 
other vulnerable groups  

• Local schemes should support work incentives, and in 
particular avoid disincentives to move into work.  

 
1.5 The Government expects that Councils should continue to have a 

significant degree of control over how expenditure on the current council 
tax support bill is achieved. This includes freedom to collaborate to reduce 
costs, develop schemes that support priorities that are shared by a 
number of neighbouring authorities and the ability to manage financial 
risks.  

  

Page 8



 
1.6  At the time of setting up Boston’s local scheme, the CTB caseload was 

made up in the following way –  
 

Table 1 - Profile of Council Tax Benefit customers (as at July 2012) 
 

                            Number                    Percentage          CTB expenditure  

Working Age  3,194  50.05%   
Pensioners  3,187  49.95%   
Total  6,381  100%  £4,889,578* 

 
*Estimated full year expenditure. A breakdown of working age and pension age 
expenditure is not available. 
 
1.7 During each year the levels of CTS as well as caseloads fluctuate and it is  
 only at the end of a financial year that we can be assured of the total  
 expenditure incurred. Pensioner caseloads tend to attract higher levels of  
 awards than those of working age. This is due to factors such as higher  
 levels of income, non-dependents in the household and generally going on  
 and off benefits in the working age claimant group. 
 
 
2 BOSTON’S LOCAL SCHEME  
 
2.1  Since 2013 the Council’s local scheme uses a number of principles:- 
  

Protecting the most vulnerable – pension-age and war 
pensioners  
A means-testing scheme based on the Council Tax Benefit 
rules as far as possible  
The scheme will be reviewed annually  

 
Protect war pensioners from reductions in support  
Maximum entitlement to be capped at 75% of Council Tax 
liability  

   
2.2 The review of the scheme for 2021/22 identified that the projected costs 

were contained within the budgeted resources. A similar scheme to 
previous years, with up ratings in line with the Government for specific 
deductions, was approved for the current year. 

 
 

3  CURRENT SCHEME FIGURES 
 
3.1 As at 31 March 2020, the caseload and spend was as follows –  
 
                            Number                    Percentage          CTS expenditure  

Working Age  2,482 52.19%  £1,648,971 
Pensioners  2,273 47.81%  £2,158,999 
Total  4,755 100%  £3,807,971 

 

Page 9



 
 
3.2 The outturn position for 2019/20 was a 2.7% increase to the direct 

costs of the council tax support scheme when compared to 2018/19. 
There was a reduction in the caseload of 1.69%. This is due to the 
increase in council tax with the additionally 2% for Adult Social Care 
and the introduction of universal credit. 

           The cost of the scheme is borne by the major preceptors (LCC, LPCC 
& BBC) in proportion to their precepts. The cost to the Borough Council 
is therefore approx 11% of the total cost. 

 
3.3 As at 31 July 2020, the caseload and spend so far for 2020/21 was as 

follows –  
                            Number                    Percentage          CTS expenditure  

Working Age  2,379 51.34%  £1,622,129 
Pensioners  2,255 48.66%  £2,158,092 
Total  4,634 100%  £3,780,222** 

 
** This figure fluctuates in year with caseload changes and final expenditure 
will not be determined until 31 March 2021.  
 
 
4.  Proposals for the 2021/22 Council Tax Support scheme 
 
4.1 When approving the 2018/19 CTS scheme, it was proposed that a 

fundamental review of the scheme would not be undertaken for at least 
two years due the delays in the roll out process of Universal Credit. 
This should allow sufficient evidence to determine the ongoing impacts. 
The migration of universal credit claims has not yet been decided and 
we believe will be complete until at least 2023. 

  
 The delays have also had a knock-on impact for our pensioner 
caseload and we will not see any changes to their housing costs being 
paid for from Housing Benefit until after March 2022.  
 
Since the introduction of universal credit it has become apparent that 
those who are in receipt of universal credit, have earnings and claim 
council tax support can have their claims reassessed up to 12 times 
per year. Universal credit is assessed over a month period and the 
earnings received by the applicant within that time period are used, if 
these increase or decrease the assessment to universal credit will 
change, creating a reassessment for council tax support. If there is a 
change to their assessment this will alter the council tax instalments 
going forward. This may mean that some applicants may find that they 
could go up to 12 months without receiving a reminder for council tax. 

  
 On this basis the 2020/21 CTS scheme be consulted on as follows. 
 
  

Page 10



Option 1 
 
Continuation of the current scheme, as it is, with a ‘no change’ 
approach. 
 
With uprating the amounts used in the calculation of Council Tax 
Support for working age claimants in line with Department for Work and 
Pensions Uprating for working age social security benefits and non-
dependant deductions. 
 
This option would maintain a consistent approach to Boston’s CTS 
scheme since its introduction in 2013/14.  It continues to recognise the 
additional needs of the vulnerable through the approach to its 
calculation. 
 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards 
would need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. Any 
consultation process should include this as an option with views on 
how or what services should be affected. 
 
 
Option 2 
 
Uprate in line with the Department of Work and Pensions uprating’s for 
working age social security benefits and non- dependant deductions, 
but  assess working age applicants who are working and in receipt of 
universal credit every 3 months. 
 
If an applicant had a significant change in their income within the 3 
month period the case should be reassessed, this will allow the 
applicant more consistency with their entitlement and allow the council 
tax to become due and if the need should arise place the account into 
the standard recovery cycle. 
 
This option would maintain a consistent approach to Boston’s CTS 
scheme since its introduction in 2013/14, however it would elevate the 
challenges received by the introduction of universal credit. It continues 
to recognise the additional needs of the vulnerable through the 
approach to its calculation. 
 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards 
would need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. It 
would reduce the need for monthly recalculations which could offer 
administration savings. Any consultation process should include this as 
an option with views on how or what services should be affected. 
 
 

  

Page 11



Option 3 
 
Continuation of 2020/21 scheme, but not apply any uprating’s. This 
would make our scheme out of line with nationally calculated figures.  

 
Any further reduction in the grant funding or increase in CTS awards 
would need to be found from other budget areas or service cuts. Any 
consultation process undertaken should include this as an option with 
views on how or what services should be affected. 
 

 
5  Additional information 
 
5.1 The Council is required to consult with major preceptors and the public 

in terms of any scheme changes.  Any consultation should run for a 
reasonable period of time, and the responses to the consultation will be 
made available to members, and ultimately Council, as part of the 
decision making process. The more flexibility there is around 
consultation and the scheme options to be included in the consultation, 
the greater the likelihood that the consultation can be based on the 
best available information and therefore provide better information on 
which the Council can set its scheme for the following year.  

 
5.2 The financial risk of the localised scheme is shared with Lincolnshire 

County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Lincolnshire, as our major precepting authorities.  Unlike Council Tax 
Benefit which was a fully funded scheme, Council Tax Support is now a 
local discount, and has the effect of reducing the council tax base. 

 
5.3     The final decision regarding the scheme design rests with this Council.  
 
 
6.  Decision making and consultation 
 

In order to ensure that the 2021/22 localised CTS scheme is 
implemented for April 2021, the following timetable of consultation and 
decision making is being followed:- 

 

Consultation to include major 
preceptors, other interested 
parties, and Corporate and 
Community (C & C) Committee 

September - October 2020 
 
  

Analyse consultation responses Early October 2020 

C & C Committee 
Cabinet  
To recommend to Council the 
2021/22 Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme 

15th October 2020 
21st October 2020 

Page 12



Council formally approves final 
2021/22 Local Council Tax Support 
scheme 

18th January 2021 

Notification of approved new 
scheme to those affected, if 
required 

January 2021 

Implementation of new scheme 1 April 2021 

 
 
7.  Results from consultation 
 
 Awaiting consultation to finish 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Awaiting consultation to finish 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The impacts upon the Council’s budgets of the preferred option, once Council 
approval has been given, will be included in the 2021/22 Budget and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. It is anticipated that these will be in line with the 
costs of the current year’s scheme.  
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council tax reduction scheme regulations 2013 requires that councils  
review local schemes on an annual basis. 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
An equality impact assessment will be undertaken as any specific proposals 
for amending the scheme going forward are considered. 
 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 
None 
 

 
  

Page 13



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

None  
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

A report on this item has not previously been considered. 
 

 
  

Page 14



FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:   

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 
 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

     

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£0     

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There are no financial implications arising at this stage. The report to Council seeking 
approval on the 2021/22 CTS scheme to be adopted will identify budgetary 
considerations which will then be included in the 2021/22 Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 
 
Risk 
 
That future caseload increases, and/or that impacts of wider Welfare Reform 
measures accrue, and additional costs are incurred. 
 
Procurement 
 
n/a 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
n/a 
 

This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2020 

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER, LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: JAMES GILBERT, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – 
ORGANISATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
This report proposes for scrutiny a Workforce Development Strategy (Appendix A), 
setting out the approach the Council will take between 2020 and 2024 to develop its 
culture, working practices and people.   
 
The Workforce Development Strategy is relevant to the workforce across the strategic 
alliance and the document will also be presented for adoption at East Lindsey District 
Council. 
 
The Strategy has been developed in consultation with employees at both Councils.  
Trade Unions have also been consulted on its content. 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee provides comments to support the Strategy’s development. 
 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To ensure there is a clear strategy for how the Council will develop its culture, 
working practices and people. 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to have a Workforce Development Strategy.  This option has been discounted.  A 
Workforce Development Strategy is an important framework for the Council given the 
journey of change the Council is on and was a key recommendation in the Peer 
Review. 
 

 
 
REPORT 
 
1. The Workforce Development Strategy proposed in this report provides a holistic 

framework for how the organisation develops its culture, working practices and 
people. 

 
2. The need for a Workforce Development Strategy was highlighted in the LGA Peer 

Review that took place in 2019 and was a key recommendation to the Council. 
 
3. The Workforce Development Strategy proposed at Appendix A has been 

developed in consultation with the Leadership Team, Managers across the 
alliance, the Employee Reference Group and Union representatives. 

 
4. The themes identified in the Workforce Development Strategy are: 

a) Attract and retain talented employees 
b) A flexible approach to service delivery 
c) A healthy and active workforce 
d) Shape our organisational culture and maximise staff engagement 
e) Be efficient and effective in all we do 
f) Celebrate our success and reward excellence 

 
5. To enable the Strategy’s delivery and ensure it is well embedded across the 

workforce, a Workforce Development Board will be formed of relevant officers.  
External representatives may be invited to join the Board for specific themes 
where they might add value.  The Board will be responsible for ensuring the 
Strategy is delivered.   
 

6. Once feedback is received from Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee, 
this will be considered by the Portfolio Holder before the Strategy is taken to 
Cabinet for consideration. 

 
7. The Strategy’s success will be measured via the indicators identified within the 

document and these will be reported via the Performance Framework.   
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
That the adoption of a Workforce Development Strategy is necessary to support and 
guide employee development across the alliance; and the views of the Corporate and 
Community Scrutiny Committee are sought to further shape the final Strategy. 

Page 18



 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
On the whole the Strategy will be delivered via the Workforce Development Board 
within existing resources.   It should be noted that some of the actions (for example, 
ICT investment) may require funding as they develop and business cases will be 
produced on a project by project basis for consideration. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
As working practices continue to evolve and technology plays a greater role in 
service delivery, the Council will see a reduced need for travel (business and 
commuting), which will have a positive improve on the carbon reduction agenda. 

 
 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
None 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Leadership Team, Managers across the 
Councils, the Employee Reference Group and Trade Union representations.  
 

Page 19



 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Workforce Development Strategy 2020- 2024 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

LGA Corporate Peer Review http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-
content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-
Council-Peer-Review.pdf 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 

 
 

Page 20

http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf


Appendix A 

P a g e  1 | 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workforce Development Strategy 

2020 to 2024 

 
A Strategic Alliance where everybody has the opportunity to thrive. 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 21



Appendix A 

P a g e  2 | 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council’s role 

 

The primary role of a Council is to protect and support the community’s’ people and places where there is a duty and a need to do so.  It achieves this by delivering a wide 

range of services that it is legally required to provide (statutory); and services that the Council decides are important to the community (discretionary) because they directly 

help vulnerable residents, contribute to health and wellbeing, or enable an environment to help people and businesses to contribute to achieving a prosperous and vibrant 

community. 

 

 

This Strategy supports the Corporate Strategies of Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council by: 

 Enabling and supporting colleagues to deliver the aims of the Corporate Strategies. 

 Establishing a healthy environment of trust and support. 

 Placing a focus on staff health and resilience. 

 Improving outcomes by focusing on people – customers, residents, elected members, partners and colleagues. 

 Delivering integrated services and matching the right skills to the right roles.  

 

 

  

P
age 22



Appendix A 

P a g e  3 | 14 

 

 

Introduction 

Welcome to our Workforce Development Strategy.   

The Workforce Development Strategy is a blueprint to support the workforce of Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council, as they work together as a 

Strategic Alliance to deliver on the Councils’ priorities. 

This Strategy will help deliver both Councils’ Corporate Strategies, which provide our strategic framework. The Workforce Development Strategy aims to provide a guide that 

builds on and takes forward existing achievements, developing a cohesive structure for transformational change and future success.  The Strategy will be supported by a 

Delivery Plan. 

Altogether we employ some 685 people in a range of roles and working from a range of locations.  The workforce is split around 50/50 between office-based and non-office-

based colleagues.  All have a clear and common purpose – delivering on the Councils’ ambitions for Boston Borough and East Lindsey.  

This plan provides the framework for how we will develop our workforce over the coming four years, setting out a number of priorities and the associated actions to be taken 

forward.   

Colleagues working across the Strategic Alliance are instrumental in the realisation of our Councils’ Corporate Strategies.   

We are committed to nurturing and developing our people and maximising the opportunities for everyone to contribute to attaining our aspirations. 

To achieve our Councils’ ambitions, as a Strategic Alliance we need all colleagues to be adaptive, flexible and empowered to make positive changes to the way we go about 

our business.  

I’d like to thank all who have contributed to this strategy.  

Rob Barlow, Joint Chief Executive 

P
age 23



Appendix A 

P a g e  4 | 14 

 

Supporting and/or connecting work programmes 

 

 

Workforce Development Strategy

Health and 
Wellbeing

Employee 
engagement

Internal 
communications

Employee 
Communications

Member 
Communications

Reward and 
recognition

External 
communications

External 
engagement

Marketing

Digitial

Media

The Way We 
Work

Digital/ 
Technology

Information 
Management

Performance/ risk 
management 

Medium term 
financial plan

Commercialisation

Supporting HR 
Policies

Agile and Flexible 
Working

Training and 
Development

Performance 
Management Process

Recruitment & 
Induction process

Member 
development

P
age 24



Appendix A 

P a g e  5 | 14 

 

 

Vision 

A talented workforce that is agile, efficient, empowered and engaged in the visions of the Councils’ they serve. 

Purpose 

The purpose of our Workforce Development Strategy is to support our workforce and deliver continuing structural and cultural change, with a clear ambition to 

ensure our teams are well placed to deliver on the Councils’ priorities. 

What do we want to achieve? 

 Motivated and empowered workforce 

 A flexible and sustainable workforce 

 Workforce that is efficient, effective and equipped to deliver the Councils ambitions 

 Greater efficiency through collaboration 

Ultimately, our success will depend on a culture that rewards talent and success, empowers and enables people, and an environment that promotes and 

provides employee wellbeing, and work-based learning that gives people the skills they need and the confidence to take decisions where it is necessary and 

appropriate to do so. 

Governance 

This Strategy’s delivery will be overseen by the Assistant Director (Organisation & Corporate Services) supported by the formation of a Workforce 

Development Board.  The Board’s role will be to drive the Strategy’s implementation and provide a check/balance on core actions of the Delivery Plan as they 

are taken forward, including insight from across the Strategic Alliance. The One Team Voice employee reference group will be a key link for the Board into the 

workforce and will be invited to have a representative on the Board. 

External partners may be invited to attend Board meetings where they have knowledge or experience on a particular issue for consideration.  

 

Strategic Priorities 

We are committed to working with our workforce and elected members in developing a culture that embraces change and seeks continuous improvement. 

A number of strategic themes underpin the Workforce Development Strategy, which are listed below and detailed further on the subsequent pages: 

 

 

P
age 25



Appendix A 

P a g e  6 | 14 

 

Attract & retain talented employees 
 

A flexible approach to service delivery A healthy and active workforce 

Shape our organisational culture and maximise 
staff engagement 

Be efficient and effective in all we do Celebrate our success and reward excellence 

 

 

  

P
age 26



Appendix A 

P a g e  7 | 14 

 

 

1. ATTRACT AND RETAIN TALENTED EMPLOYEES 

Why is this a priority? 

The Councils have, or are developing, ambitious Corporate Strategies that require skilled officers to deliver. 

Given our geographic locations, recruitment can be a challenge.  Whilst we have a relatively low turnover of staff, we do struggle to recruit in some areas of 

the business, particularly the roles considered more specialist.   

In order to attract and retain employees we need to ensure we offer progressive development opportunities, which enable them to move forward in their 

careers. 

We passionately believe colleagues should be given the opportunity to grow as individuals to reach their full potential.  

Investing in the development of our workforce has the following benefits –  

1. It ensures our workforce is equipped to do their job. 

2. It ensures our workforce has opportunities to develop as individuals. 

3. It supports retention.  

4. It makes us attractive employers. 

5. It enables succession planning and provides leadership opportunities. 

We have many colleagues, at a range of levels, who, with the right training and development opportunities, have progressed positively in their chosen area of 

work.    

What are we going to do? 

 Develop a Resourcing Strategy, including Apprenticeships and Graduate programmes, to attract the best talent, and enhance the employers’ 

reputations and brand to make the Councils attractive employers.  

 

 Provide a robust annual training plan to support the development of the workforce. 

 

 Maximise the use of the Apprenticeship Levy and ensure Apprentices have the opportunity to secure wider experiences than the role they have been 

recruited to.   

 

 Maximise the use of internal and external secondment opportunities to enhance the skills of our workforce. 

 

P
age 27



Appendix A 

P a g e  8 | 14 

 

 

 Provide a range of networking and learning opportunities for colleagues to share knowledge and experiences across service areas and with partner 

organisations. 

 Develop performance management processes which empower individuals to identify, access and develop their potential. 

 Launch a development framework identifying the skills and behaviours we require of individuals operating at the different levels to support in career 

progression. 

 

 Provide mentoring opportunities through shadowing and vocational learning and development. 

 

 Ensure all service areas have clear succession planning arrangements. 

 

 Raise the profile of the benefits of working for the Councils through recruitment advertising; and ensure recruitment advertising is effectively targeted. 

 

 Provide opportunities to draw people across services to work on corporate-wide projects based on skills not just posts. 

 

What will success look like? 

- Colleagues telling us they feel valued and fulfilled in their role. 

 

- Colleagues who achieve career advancement.  

 

- We will have identified succession plans and career pathways for professional roles. 

 

- We are recognised as employers of choice 

 

- An increased number of our Apprentices successfully securing permanent positions. 

 

- Increased applications for the Future Leaders Programme 

 

  

P
age 28



Appendix A 

P a g e  9 | 14 

 

 

2. A FLEXIBLE APPROACH TO SERVICE DELIVERY 

Why is this a priority? 

We recognise that Local Government has been slower than some sectors to fully embrace flexible and agile working.  This has however been expedited for 

us by the Coronavirus pandemic.   Some of our teams have worked in this way for some time – and for some it is still very new. 

Technological investments are providing new opportunities for our teams to provide services in a more agile and flexible way.   In line with our Agile Working 

Policy, and subject to service demands, we want colleagues to have greater choice and freedom in how and where they work in order to fulfil their duties.   

We recognise that work is one element of our busy lives and that we all need to find the right work / life balance – technology can help us achieve this. 

We want our teams to have access to the technology they need to do their job in the most efficient and effective way.   

What are we going to do? 

 Deploy technology that enables our teams to work in a more agile and flexible way. 

 

 Ensure there is a robust training package to support the use of new technology, so we maximise its benefits. 

 

 We will equip our Managers with the skills they need to effectively manage in line with our change in working practices. 

 

 Promote the use of video conferencing as a mechanism to communicate with colleagues, elected members and partners and increase efficiency 

through reduced travel. 

 

 Encourage colleagues to consider how they can work in an agile and flexible way whilst still fulfilling their duties. 

 

 Promote cultural change in the way we work and deliver services 

 

What will success look like? 

- Increased capacity to deliver services to customers – measured through the performance and productivity framework. 

 

- Colleagues having a healthy work / life balance – measured through the staff survey and HR data (such as sickness reporting). 

 

- We are recognised as being advanced and forward-looking. 

P
age 29



Appendix A 

P a g e  10 | 14 

 

 

3. A HEALTHY AND ACTIVE WORKFORCE 
 

Why is this a priority? 
 
We have high long-term sickness rates in some service areas.  This isn’t good for the employee or the running of Council services. 
Healthier employees are absent less often and are more motivated to stay in work.  Healthy employees also recover from sickness quicker and are at less risk 
of long-term illness. 
 
We have placed a focus on raising the profile of ‘health’ amongst colleagues for some time, but this priority will provide a greater, more co-ordinated, focus on 
that ambition. 
 
What are we going to do? 
 

 Develop a targeted workforce Health and Wellbeing Plan. 
 

 Ensure the mental health and physical health of our colleagues are valued equally. 
 

 Proactively promote staff health, wellbeing and safety ensuring appropriate mechanisms and provisions are in place to support colleagues and 
maximise attendance at work. 
 

 A business case approach to the introduction of early intervention options through our Occupational Health services. 
 

 Secure Disability Confidence Level 3 accreditation which demonstrates that we are acting as a champion for Disability Confident within our workforce 
and our local and business communities. 
 

 Accreditation of a Workplace Wellbeing Charter including Time to Change and the Mindful Employer Charter. 
 

What will success look like? 
 

- Reduced long-term and short-term sickness. 
 

- Greater capacity to deliver services. 
 

- Healthier workforce. 
 

- Improved employee resilience and ability to cope with change.  

P
age 30



Appendix A 

P a g e  11 | 14 

 

 

4. SHAPE OUR CULTURE AND MAXIMISE STAFF ENGAGEMENT 

Why is this a priority? 

There is a strong correlation between the extent to which people perceive a connection with their employer and its culture and high performance.  This kind of 

engagement is positively influenced by factors such as effective leadership, empowerment, shared values, a supportive infrastructure and work / life balance.   

Our workforce is made up of both office based and non-office based staff, and our internal communications processes need to take account of this.  Effective 

internal communication and engagement helps ensure that all members of the workforce and elected members are working collaboratively towards a common 

goal. It develops a cohesive culture and empowers employees to make the right decisions in line with our goals. 

What are we going to do? 

 Review internal communication channels to ensure there are clear channels for the dissemination of information to colleagues in a timely manner. 

 

 Develop, clearly articulate and promote behaviours among all colleagues that are compatible with the aims and values of the Councils. 

 

 Adopt progressive employment practices, developing an accessible and simple to use HR policy framework. 

 

 Further develop positive and constructive employee relations with Trade Unions. 

 

 Develop a workplace culture that encourages colleagues to think innovatively, generate ideas and undertake continuous improvement to our services 

and processes. 

 

 Maximise the use of video conferencing capabilities to conduct employee briefings on major issues as a mechanism for communication and improving 

the visibility of leadership. 

 

 Further embed the Officer/Member protocol to ensure shared involvement, understanding and commitment to the delivery of the Corporate Strategies. 

What will success look like? 

- Colleagues understanding how they contribute to the Councils’ objectives, regardless of role.   

 

 

- Consistent levels of improvement of ‘informed’ and ‘valued’ ratings for all colleagues.  

P
age 31



Appendix A 

P a g e  12 | 14 

 

 

 

5. BE EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE IN ALL WE DO 

Why is this a priority? 

The Councils’ workforces are significantly smaller than they once were.  Teams are doing more with less – being more innovative and creative in the way they 

deliver services. 

The people closest to the processes and procedures within our services are the people best placed to improve them.   

We want to ensure our teams feel empowered to identify and implement positive changes to working practices, with the support they need to become even 

more efficient which releases capacity.  We want our teams to seek new opportunities to improve performance and service delivery to our customers.  This 

includes challenging traditional service boundaries and structures to deliver joined up services that are useful and relevant to our communities and working 

more closely with our partner agencies. 

What are we going to do? 

 Empower our teams through positive leadership to bring forward improvements to processes and procedures, with a view to improving efficiency and 

the customer experience. 

 

 Invest in technology where a business case demonstrates improved performance and efficiency. 

 

 Continue to develop our online systems (internal and external) to provide services in the most efficient way.  This includes pushing more information 

and services online for customer self-serve where appropriate. 

 

 Develop solid relationships with other organisations where there is clear benefit for both parties. 

 

 Monitor performance through an effective Performance Framework. 

 

 Embed a Matrix Management approach across to move beyond structure and enable a flexible approach to structuring teams and sharing resources. 

 

 Undertake a programme of service reviews to improve service delivery. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 32



Appendix A 

P a g e  13 | 14 

 

 

What will success look like? 

- Increased functionality of intelligent automation of our services. 

 

- Increased and sustained improvement through our key performance indicators. 

 

- Streamlined processes and procedures which have reduced duplication of work and deliver services that are comprehensive, coherent and cost 

effective. 

 

- A workforce that champions and embraces technology. 

  

P
age 33



Appendix A 

P a g e  14 | 14 

 

 

6. CELEBRATE OUR SUCCESS AND REWARD EXCELLENCE  

Why is this a priority? 

Traditionally, Local Government has never been great at celebrating the essential and vitally important work it does for communities.  We firmly believe we 

should all be very proud of what we do and the contribution that we make to improve society and support our residents. 

We need to be better at celebrating our successes! 

What are we going to do? 

 Continue to develop the Employee Recognition Awards as a programme that celebrates achievement, including the launch of an Annual Awards event 

to celebrate the success of teams and individuals. 

 

 Promote to residents, businesses, Councillors and partners our successes through our communications channels. 

 

 Where we have a strong story to tell seek regional and national profile through Awards and publications. 

 

 Ensure we have a robust scheme to measure jobs and provide a fair and equitable pay scheme. 

 

 Implementation of Total Reward System* as a long-term approach to employee recognition and reward. 

 

What will success look like? 

- Staff feeling their contribution towards service delivery and its success is recognised and valued. 

 

- Staff understanding that opportunities for career progression exists. 

 

- Staff empowered to create a culture of accountability and responsibility in delivering success. 

 

- Staff perceive base pay to be fair and equitable. 

 

- Staff recognise the full value of the totality of their employment package. 

* A total rewards system comprises all the investments an organisation makes in its workforce; pay, benefits, professional development, recognition and 

work /life balance. 

P
age 34



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2020 

SUBJECT: DRAFT ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 2019 - 2020 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 

It is common practice for local authorities to develop an annual report on the overview 
and scrutiny activity it has undertaken throughout the previous municipal year. 
 
A draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 has therefore been 
produced for Boston Borough Council and is attached at Appendix A of this report for 
consideration.  
 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That it be recommended to full Council that the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
for 2019/20 be approved for publication.  

 
 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To promote and highlight the success of the work undertaken by the overview and 
scrutiny committees in 2019/20.   
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To amend the content or format of the current draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report. 
 
Not to produce an Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report.  
 
 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 
 

1. Background  
 

1.1 The production of an Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report provides Boston 
Borough Council with an ideal opportunity to showcase and highlight the 
important scrutiny work that has taken place throughout the previous 
municipal year. 

 
1.2  A draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 has been produced 

to evidence the volume of scrutiny activity undertaken during the year, identify 
outcomes achieved and public participation in large scale reviews. 

 
1.3 The draft report is attached as Appendix A to this report, and provides 

information on the following: - 
 

 The Council’s overview and scrutiny function; 

 Work programmes for the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees; 

 Review work undertaken by Task & Finish Groups; 

 Call In function 
 
1.4 2019/20 was a particularly productive year with Scrutiny members addressing 

a number of important issues via Inquiry evenings, Member briefings, Working 
Group and Task and Finish Group reviews and a Call-In of a Cabinet decision. 

 
1.5 The draft Annual Report will be considered by the Environment and 

Performance Committee on 3rd November 2020.  
 
1.6 If approved by Full Council, the Annual Report will be published on Boston 

Borough Council’s website. 
 
 

2. Conclusion  

2.1 The draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20 is attached to this 
report for consideration by the Corporate and Community Committee.   

 
2.2 The purpose of the report is to promote the overview and scrutiny process and 

highlight the valuable contributions that Non-Executive Councillors were able 
to make in 2019/20, particularly in their capacity as members of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.   

 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 

None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

Councillor Judith Skinner - Chairman Environment and Performance Committee 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe – Chairman of the Corporate and Community 
Committee 
Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services 

 
APPENDICES 
 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Annual Scrutiny Report 2019 – 2020 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None.  

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
None. 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT

2019 / 202O

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

This report is reduced in content due to suspension of the committee meetings 

in line with Government guidance due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

P
age 39



Contents:
Forward 3 Councillor Call-In              10

(By Chairmen)

Alternative Ways of Working 12

Introduction to Scrutiny 4 - Inquiry Evening

- Member Briefing

Scrutiny Working 5 - Member working group

- Task and Finish Review

Options of Scrutiny Working 6

Corporate and Community Committee 7 Public Involvement 15

(aligned to corporate priorities CP 2 and CP4):

- Snapshot of reporting Public Suggestion Form                  16

- Key recommendations

Environment and Performance Committee 8

(aligned to corporate priorities: CP 1 and CP3):

- Snapshot of reporting

- Key recommendations

Scrutiny Recommendation (outcomes) 9

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

CP1

Prosperity

CP2

People

CP3

Place

CP4

Public Services

Corporate 
Priorities

P
age 40



Forward 

Councillor Judith Skinner

Conservative 

Ward: Fishtoft

Chairman

Environment and 

Performance

Councillor Stephen 

Woodliffe

Independent  

Ward:  West

Chairman 

Corporate and Community

Councillor Judith Skinner

Councillor Stephen Woodliffe

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

It has been an honour to chair the E&P Committee again this year. The

members of this committee always engage fully in scrutiny with debates that

are lively & detailed. We have been able to put forward our views on the

consultation on the Energy from waste proposal. The paper and card trial has

been keenly monitored as well. The Councils performance is diligently

scrutinised. The path ahead will present some challenges, in these times,

though I am sure that together we will rise to them.

My thanks go to all involved with the T&F Regulating & Safeguarding Review

We have consulted extensively with the public and public bodies to gain their

views and experiences on these matters. This is part of good scrutiny.

Both Scrutiny Committees work closely with the Executive and all Elected

Members to act as a focus for constructive challenge in order to maintain

the drive to improve public services, reflect public concerns, and enable

improvements to be made to policies and their implementation.

P
age 41

http://www.visitbostonuk.com/


Introduction to Scrutiny  by definition:  ‘Critical Observation or Examination’.

1 2 3 4

Provides a 

critical friend 

challenge to 

executive policy-

makers and  

decision-makers

Enables the 

voice and 

concerns of the 

public and its 

communities

to be heard

Is carried out by 

independent-

minded members 

who lead and own 

the scrutiny 

process

Drives 

improvement in 

public service

Key Principles of Scrutiny:

On the implementation of the Local Government Act

2000, a new political system was introduced which

allowed Councils to have a separate ‘executive’ rather

than just the committee system: a Cabinet model

which is similar to central Government.

To balance the Cabinet and monitor its decision-

making, the function of Overview and Scrutiny was

introduced requiring all Councils to have at least one

Scrutiny Committee. The committee(s) would be

similar to a select committee with back benchers

acting as critical friends

Scrutiny can look at:
Decisions by the Cabinet

External Partners

Public Services

Performance

Budget

Health

Scrutiny cannot look at:
Any legal proceedings

Individual complaints

Licensing decisions

Planning decisions

Ombudsman 

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 42



Scrutiny Working: 
New statutory guidance introduced in 2019 proposed 10 principles to develop a supportive culture for scrutiny:

 Recognising scrutiny’s legal and democratic legitimacy

 Identifying a clear role and focus

 Ensuring earlier and more regular engagement between the Cabinet and scrutiny

 Managing disagreements with Cabinet via an executive-scrutiny protocol

 Necessary support with access to resources and senior officers

 Ensuring impartial advice is always provided by officers

 Communicating scrutiny’s role and purpose to the wider authority

 Maintaining the interest of Full Council in the work of the scrutiny committees with ensuring a link between full council  

proceedings and overview and scrutiny

 Communicating the role of Scrutiny to the public

 Ensuring scrutiny members are supported in having an independent mind set. 

Following on from the new guidance, Boston Borough Council’s scrutiny function      

was audited and received a High Assurance Rating which recognised that 

the Council maintained a high level of confidence in its service delivery

arrangements; its management of risks; and the operation of its controls and performance

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 43



OPTIONS OF WORKING

Full Report 
to the parent 
Committee

Task and 
Finish Group 

Review

Member 
Working 
Group

Inquiry 
Session

Member 
Briefing

A scrutiny committee may wish to pursue a subject matter in greater depth or require more information on items presented in the 

quarterly performance report which are often tabled in isolation of contributory factors.

If a detailed review requiring significant evidence gathering, support of officers and attendance by a number of outside representatives 

is requested a Task and Finish Group review may be convened.  

If a short period review is required on a subject which members may wish to deliberate without officer assistance then a

Member Working Group may be convened which is facilitated by those members.

When a subject requires a very open and robust debate by Councillors an Inquiry Session may be called which allows members to

thoroughly question the officer(s) presenting and to receive concentrated information in an informal forum.

If a subject matter is deemed to be of interest to all members of the Council then a Member Briefing is scheduled.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 44



Reports received for recommendations to Cabinet or Full Council:

 Overview of Housing Benefit.           

Recommend to Cabinet that data for claims and caseload figures be included in future performance reporting. 

 Homeless Assistance Policy.

Recommend adoption by Cabinet.

 Transformation Programme

Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council fees of £45 for the 1st garden waste bin and £20 for all  

additional bins.

 Council Tax Support Scheme

Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council

 New Statutory Guidance for Overview and Scrutiny

Recommend draft protocol to Cabinet

 Draft Safeguarding Policy and Protocol
Recommend Cabinet to recommend to Full Council

Quarterly performance monitoring was tabled in support 

of the committee’s work programme. 

An update report in respect of Council Tax Arrears resulted 

in a member briefing being convened for greater scrutiny.

▪

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE:

Corporate Priorities

CP2.   People

CP4. Public Services

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 45



ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE:
Reports received for recommendations to Cabinet or Full Council:

 The Climate Change member working group tabled regular updates to committee
Agreed final report recommendations to Full Council.

 The Annual CCTV report and CCTV Policy
Recommended adoption of the CCTV Policy by Cabinet

 Replacement Domestic Wheel Bins
Recommended Cabinet to withdraw charges contrary to report recommendation.  (see Call-In)

 New Overview and Scrutiny Statutory Guidance
Recommended draft protocol to Cabinet for adoption

 Air Quality Action Plan
Agreed the draft plan and recommended to Cabinet

Consultation exercise:
 Committee consulted on the proposed consultation for Boston Alternative Energy Facility

A number of additional recommendations for the proposed consultation process were agreed.

Public community meeting:
 The Pilgrim Allied Opportunities events

The meeting held at Boston Guildhall with a tour of the exhibits included in the meeting.

Support reporting for the work programme
 Annual ASB report

 Quarter performance monitoring

 Update markets report

Corporate Priorities

CP1.   Prosperity

CP3. Place

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 46



SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION OUTCOMES

Recommended to and agreed by Cabinet or recommended to and by agreed by Full Council:

 Air Quality Policy

 CCTV Policy

 Homeless Assistance Policy

 Safeguarding Policy

 Peer Challenge Action Plan

 Council Tax Support Scheme

 Overview and Statutory Guidance

Consultation recommendations:

Following consultation by Boston Alternative Energy Facility (BAEF) a number of the recommendations tabled by

the committee were taken forward and implemented within BAEF’s final consultation process with residents of the

Borough.

Member Working Group:

On conclusion of the working group the final report was tabled to Full Council in January 2020 with all

recommendations being agreed.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 47



COUNCILLOR CALL- IN
Non-Cabinet members are able to ‘Call-In’ a decision made by the Cabinet should they feel the decision requires

further consideration. The protocol requires four non-Cabinet members to sign the official call-in form, citing their

reasons for doing so.

A meeting of the Environment and Performance Committee was convened for the 14 November 2019 to consider a

decision made by Cabinet in respect of charges for replacement domestic wheeled bin charges.

History of report:

1. At the Environment and Performance Committee on the 24 September consideration was given to a report which

recommended increasing charges for replacement domestic wheeled bins. The Committee agreed a

recommendation to Cabinet that all charges for replacement domestic wheeled bins should be withdrawn.

2. At the meeting of Cabinet held on the 23 October 2019 it was agreed to not accept the recommendation.

3. Three days after the meeting of Cabinet a ‘Call-In’ form was received by the Chief Executive.

The meeting was duly held with three options available for the committee:

1. To determine that the decision should not have been called-in in which event the decision of Cabinet would stand

2. To refer the matter back to Cabinet for further reconsideration setting out the nature of their concerns

3. To refer the matter on to Full Council for debate (Council is not able to overturn the Cabinet decision).

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 48



COUNCILLOR CALL- IN continued

The decision of the call-in meeting on the 14 November 2019 was to refer the matter on to Full Council 

for debate, noting that Full Council could not overturn a Cabinet decision.

It was agreed at the subsequent meeting of Full Council held on 16 December 2019, to refer the

Cabinet decision back to the next meeting of the Cabinet for further consideration taking into account

the comments of Full Council that charges should only be raised in circumstances where deliberate

damage had been caused to the bins.

Cabinet met on 22 January 2020 and reviewed its original decision. It was agreed not to charge for

replacement bins where one was required through no fault of the resident.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 49



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING

MEMBER BRIEFING.

The following briefings were held in informal session

to allow members to receive update information and

table questions. The request for the briefings being

made by one of the committees or, when relevant,

suggested by the reporting officer as a preferred way

forward to present information.

 18 June 2019.            LGA Peer Challenge

 15 July 2019 Climate Change

 14 August 2019. Transformation Programme

 19 August 2019. Waste Trial

 20 November 2019    Peer Review

 9 December 2019    Towns Fund

 10 February 2020      Paper and Cardboard Trial

INQUIRY SESSION.

The following Inquiry Sessions were held when it was

considered that an open and robust discussion was

required on the subject matter to allow for greater

scrutiny.

 7 August 2019. Planning Process

 14 October 2019. PSPO Area

 9 March 2020. Car Parks

 16 March 2020 Fly Tipping

MEMBER WORKING GROUP:
One member working group was convened to look at

issues relating to Climate Change over a four month

period, reporting back through the Environment and

Performance Committee and onto Full Council in

December 2019 with the outcomes of the working

group.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 50



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING continued…

TASK AND FINISH GROUP REVIEW:

A review was convened in 2019 to look at Regulating and Safeguarding Boston’s Day and Night Time Economy. It

arose from the Environment and Performance Committee in response to ongoing reporting and member concerns

in respect of a range of anti social behavior issues and the public’s perception of alcohol licensing and general

enforcement.

An initial consultation exercise was carried out which returned significant feedback to help support the scope of the

review and identify consultees and research required. The agreed timeline of the review was 6 months.

The first meeting on January 21st 2020 welcomed a number of voluntary and support services from within Boston

including representatives from the Salvation Army, St Botolph’s Church, The Centenary Church, The Street Pastors

and the Hackney Carriage Association on behalf of local taxi drivers.

All representatives provided the group with relative and evidence based information in respect of their own

experiences. Areas of concern included the impact of alcohol and substance addiction resulting in homelessness,

violence and often isolation of individuals suffering from addiction. The Street Pastors confirmed their ongoing

support of people in need of assistance due to intoxication in the early hours of the morning, with reassurance to

the Hackney Carriage Association of their practice of ensuring a safe passage home to such individuals.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 51



ALTERNATIVE WAYS OF WORKING Task and Finish Group continued…

The second meeting on 26 February 2020 welcomed the Council’s Licensing and Land Charges Manager and

representatives of Lincolnshire Police, to address the issues and feedback relating to the incidents arising from

alcohol licensing. Evidence and information to address public mis-conception from the consultation feedback

included, confirmation of the number of licensed premises within the town; the amount of licence reviews

undertaken; and most importantly, the regulations to which the Police and Licensing Manager had to comply

and the options available to review panels when considering an application or a review. The detailed

information enabled the group to agree significant recommendations for the final report including lobbying the

local Member of Parliament to seek changes to Licensing Laws.

The review was suspended in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the meeting scheduled with the

Police to address anti social behavior was postponed.

A meeting was held with Lincolnshire Police and the Council’s Anti-Social Behavior Manager on 23 September

2020 to address significant feedback from the consultation process. Detailed comparative reporting with the

towns of Skegness and Horncastle was provided for pre Covid-19 lockdown; during lockdown and the period

coming out of lockdown, identifying all categories of crime. Recommendations included greater public liaison

by the Police to allay fear of crime and suggested closure over night of Central Park within the town center to

try and address the large volume of acts of ASB ongoing within the Park. The Police stated they could not

justify having a full-time presence as deployment was based on a priority basis.

The final report to be submitted to the parent committee Environment and Performance on 3 November 2020

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 52



PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
The Council’s Scrutiny meetings are held in public and the Council welcomes

suggestions from members of the public who may have ideas for the committee to

scrutinise.

This applies to all members of the public across the borough, within both the town

centre wards and the rural wards. All Parish Council clerks have information about

the Scrutiny process.

If you have a suggestion for one of the committees to consider then please complete 

the form overleaf or use the contact details below:

Corporate and Community Committee:

Chairman Councillor Stephen Woodliffe     Stephen.Woodliffe@boston.gov.uk

Clerk Janette Collier Janette.collier@boston.gov.uk
Telephone: 01205 314227

Environment and Performance Committee:

Chairman Councillor Judith Skinner           Judith.Skinner@boston.gov.uk

Clerk Karen Rist Karen.rist@boston.gvo.uk

Telephone:  01205 314226.

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 53

mailto:Stephen.Woodliffe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Janette.collier@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Judith.Skinner@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.rist@boston.gvo.uk


SUGGESTION / REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY:

Name: 

e-mail:

Telephone:

Suggestion:

Reason:

www.boston.gov.uk Like us on Facebook:Boston Borough Council

www.visitbostonuk.com Follow us on Twitter:@bostonboro

P
age 54



CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2012/21 
 

The Corporate Priorities relating to the Committee’s remit: CP2 People CP4 Public Service 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS showing links to the Council’s Corporate Priorities 
[Standing items – work programme/learning and development - not shown] 
  

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

4 June 2020  Boston Borough Council / East Lindsey District Council Strategic 
Alliance, with guests: Mr Mark Edgell, Principal Advisor, Local 
Government Association, and Mr Trevor Holden, Managing Director for 
Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils 

Councillor P Skinner 
 

Councillor Welton  

    

27 Aug 2020  Draft Corporate Strategy / Priorities for Consultation  James Gilbert  Councillor Welton 

    

1 Oct 2020  Call-In of Cabinet Decision – PE21: The Next Steps Tim Leader  Councillor Welton 

    

15 Oct 2020 1. Council Tax Support Scheme – 2020/21 
2. Workforce Development Strategy  
3. Annual Scrutiny Report  

Gemma Creasey 
James Gilbert 

Chairman 

Councillor Noble 
Councillor P Skinner 

-  
    

10 Dec 2020    

    

18 Feb 2021  Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 - 
2025/26 

Adrian Sibley  Councillor Noble 

    

8 Apr 2021    

    

 
 

Potential items brought forward: 
1. Homelessness Case Studies (also Homelessness referred from the Environment and Performance Committee) 
2. Health Activity referrals, specifically gym membership (Presentation) 
3. Drug and Alcohol Issues in Boston, Challenges and Solutions (Lincolnshire Police and Addaction to be invited) 
 

 

 
 

 

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PRIORITIES:    CP1 Prosperity    CP2 People    CP3 Place    CP4 Public Service 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Performance Q1 2020/21 – Corporate & Community Summary 
 
Performance measures: directly within the Council’s control; used to monitor how our services 
are performing against set targets 
 
Trend measures: provide context and not directly within the Council’s control; used to inform 
decision making and policy. 
 
Key to abbreviations: 
Performance: : Performance better than target; : Performance on target; : Performance 
worse than target 
 

CMT lead: AF: Andy Fisher; CA: Christian Allen; MS: Michelle Sacks; PD: Phil Drury; PJ: Paul 
Julian; PP: Phil Perry 
 
Portfolio: DB: David Brown, Tourism, Arts & Culture; JN: Jonathan Noble, Finance & Commercial; 
MG: Martin Griggs, Housing and Communities; NW: Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader – Economic 
Development and Planning; PS: Paul Skinner, Leader; RA: Richard Austin, Heritage; TA: Tracey 
Abbott, Town Centre; YS: Yvonne Stevens, Environmental Services 
 

 

Corporate Priority 2: People 
 

Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2019/20 (full year) 2020/21 (Q1) 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Benefit processing time 
– new claims (days) 

PJ JN 2 CC 4.03 10  6.89 10  

Benefit processing time 
– change in 
circumstances (days) 

PJ JN 2 CC 5.42 14  2.43 14  

Council Tax Support 
processing – new claims 
(days) 

PJ JN 2 CC 4.91 10  6.68 10  

Council Tax Support 
processing time – 
change in circumstances 
(days) 

PJ JN 2 CC 7.77 14  10.18 14  

Swim sessions at GMLC PP DB 2 EP 144,732 167,000  
See comment 
below 

Gym memberships PP DB 2 EP 1,390 1,500  
See comment 
below 

Comment: Services suspended due to COVID-19 

% of broadly compliant 
food businesses 

AF YS 2 CC 97.86% 95%  98.02% 95%  

% of food safety 
inspections completed 
against those required 
by the Food Law Code 
of Practice 

AF YS 2 CC 95.83% 100%  
See comment 
below 

Page 57



 

 

Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2019/20 (full year) 2020/21 (Q1) 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Comment: The Food Standards Agency suspended the food safety inspection programme 
towards the end of March 2020 in light of Covid-19. The Environmental Health team have been 
dealing with a high number of Covid related service requests – 1,659 in the quarter. 
Housing completions AF MG 2 CC 324 310  38 78  

Comment: Performance severely restricted due to Covid 19 and lockdown 

Number of affordable 
homes delivered (gross) 

AF MG 2 CC 97 97  0 0  

Comment: Completions tend to occur later in the year 

Number of non-local 
authority owned empty 
properties returned into 
occupation 

AF MG 2 CC 89 60  17 10  

Improved Housing 
Standards 

AF MG 2 CC 182 100  6 12  

Comment: Performance severely restricted due to Covid 19 and lockdown 

 
CP2: trend measures 
 
New trend measures as recommended by Corporate & Community Committee in July 2019 
 

Trend measures 
2019/20 2020/21 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Caseload – Housing Benefits 5430 5361 5324 5228 5148 

Caseload – Council Tax Support 4836 4805 4797 4755 4634 

New claims 428 432 448 429 518 

Change of circumstances 4176 3502 2734 11999 6865 

Comment: In April, there is a slight increase due to rent increases at LHP taking place. 

 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Number of taxi drivers 
suspended/revoked 

3 38 39 39 0 0 0 1 2 0 4 0 3 

Comment: suspended on medical grounds 

Number of vehicles 
suspended/revoked 

8 18 23 29 5 10 11 24 5 16 11 6 3 

Number of taxi 
driver/vehicle hearings 

1 1 3 8 3 7 8 9 2 1 3 0 0 

Number of premises 
licences revoked 

0 1 5 2 0 1 2 2 2 0 1 2 0 

Number of Licensing 
Act 2003 hearings 

1 4 4 6 2 5 7 11 5 4 8 3 0 

Comment: 2 hearings postponed due to Covid-19 (heard in Q2 by video conferencing) 

  

Page 58



 

 

 
 
Corporate Priority 4: Public Service 
 

Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2019/20 
(full year) 

2020/21 
Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Sickness absence – 
overall (days) 

PD PS 4 CC 7.75 7.0  1.32 1.75  

Sickness absence – long 
term (days) 

PD PS 4 CC 4.68 5.0  0.87 1.25  

Sickness absence – 
short term (days) 

PD PS 4 CC 3.06 2.0  0.45 0.50  

Switchboard - % of 
abandoned calls 

PJ NW 4 CC 5% 15%  4.40% 15%  

Switchboard – average 
waiting time (in seconds) 

PJ NW 4 CC 42 60  30s 60s  

Business Rates 
collection (% collected) 

PJ JN 4 CC 97.79% 98.00%  29.98% 31.79%  

Council Tax collection 
(% collected) 

PJ JN 4 CC 95.88% 96.00%  26.48% 28.12%  

Comment: Collection rates have been impacted by the pandemic. The Government has 
recognised the issue by introducing reliefs for both Council Tax and Business Rates, and has also 
proposed that councils can smooth the collection fund deficit that will occur across three financial 
years. 

Average time taken to 
respond to information 
requests (working days) 

MS JN 4 CC 10 20  8 20  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

18/19:
Q1

18/19:
Q2

18/19:
Q3

18/19:
Q4

19/20:
Q1

19/20:
Q2

19/20:
Q3

19/20:
Q4

20/21:
Q1

New apps 379 356 320 366 347 390 242 331 152

New housing register applications

Page 59



 

 

Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2019/20 
(full year) 

2020/21 
Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

% of information 
requests responded to 
within statutory 
timescales 

MS JN 4 CC New measure 94% 96%  

Average time taken to 
respond to Subject 
Rights requests 
(calendar days) 

MS JN 4 CC 
1 

month 
1 

month 
 

1 
month 

1 
month 

 

 
CP4: trend measures 
 

 
 

 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

17/18
: Q1

17/18
: Q2

17/18
: Q3

17/18
: Q4

18/19
: Q1

18/19
: Q2

18/19
: Q3

18/19
: Q4

19/20
: Q1

19/20
: Q2

19/20
: Q3

19/20
: Q4

20/21
: Q1

Number 6384 5923 7696 8097 7527 6790 8735 8146 8368 9724 7148 8419 9957

Number of online payments

Page 60


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - 2021/22
	2 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
	Appendix A - Workforce Development Strategy 2020-2024

	3 ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT
	Appendix A - Draft Annual Scrutiny Report 2019- 20

	4 WORK PROGRAMME
	Quarter 1 Performance for CCC


